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MONDAY, APRIL 24, 2017 

* * * * * 

P R O C E E D I N G S 

 

  THE CLERK:  Jack Leal, C322664-2.   

  THE COURT:  All right.  And, counsels, can I get 

both of your appearances for the record? 

  MR. WEINER:  Your Honor, Jason Weiner, Bar  

No. 7555, on behalf of Jack Leal. 

  MR. KOVAC:  Good afternoon.  Michael Kovac, Bar  

No. 11177, for the State of Nevada.   

  THE COURT:  Thank you. 

  Sir, you’re going to be pleading guilty to multiple 

transactions involving fraud or deceit in the course of an 

enterprise or occupation, that would be a category B felony. 

  You agree to pay restitution to the named and 

unnamed victims in the total amount of $757,420 as follows: 

  That would be $70,000 to LoryLee Plancarte; $75,000 

to Edelyn Rubin; $37,500 to Chatty Becker; $57,500 to Irene 

Segura; $98,620 to Liih-Ling Yang; $90,300 to Lina Palafox; 

$85,000 to Adilson Gibellato; $50,000 to Juan Eloy Ramirez; 

$115,000 to Catherine Wyngardner -- Wyngarden.  Sorry, 

Catherine Wyngarden; $25,000 to Shahram Bozorgnia; and 

$53,500 to Tat Lam.   

  Should the named victims have previously recovered 
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any of their losses, they should not be entitled to 

restitution covering any such sum, instead, the portion of 

the restitution covering said sum shall be forfeited to the 

State of Nevada, Office of the Attorney General.   

  You agree to pay restitution in full on or before 

the time that you’re sentenced in this case, that you and 

your co-conspirator, Jessica Garcia, are jointly and 

severally responsible for the restitution, that should you 

pay restitution in full at or before the time you’re 

sentenced in the present case the State will not oppose the 

imposition of a term of probation not to exceed five years 

with a suspended 36 to 90 months term of imprisonment.  

  If you fail to pay restitution in full at or before 

the time you are sentenced in the present case, the State 

will retain the right to argue for the imposition of a term 

of imprisonment. 

  You agree that the $157,105.17 seized in relation 

to the present case shall be forfeited to the State of 

Nevada, Office of the Attorney General, and said money shall 

be applied to your restitution requirements, that you will 

execute and file in the Clark County Recorder’s office a 

lien agreement and lien in favor of the State of Nevada, 

Office of the Attorney General, in the amount of $600,314.83 

against the home located at 1024 Santa Helena Avenue, 

Henderson, Nevada, 89002, assessor’s parcel number  
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179-33-710-065[sic]. 

  MR. WEINER:  056, your Honor, 056. 

  THE COURT:  Oh, I’m sorry, 056.  That would be 179-

33-710-056, legally described as Mission Hills EST AMD Plat 

Book 17 Page 12 Lot 223 & Lot 223A, with the proceeds of the 

sale of the home to be applied to any restitution 

requirements.  You will pay all fees and costs imposed by 

the Court.  You will submit to any of the terms and 

conditions of the Division of Parole and Probation if 

probation is granted, and that you understand that victims 

may make impact statements. 

  Is that correct, State? 

  MR. KOVAC:  That’s correct, your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Counsel, correct. 

  MR. WEINER:  That is correct, your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  I apologize.  I was doing really well 

this morning.   

  Sir, is that your understanding of the agreement 

and negotiation? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, it is. 

  THE COURT:  So what is your true, full name? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Jack Leal. 

  THE COURT:  And how old are you? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Thirty-two. 

  THE COURT:  How far did you go in school? 
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  THE DEFENDANT:  Some college. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  So do you read, write, and 

understand the English language? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.   

  THE COURT:  Are you currently taking any medication 

or do you have a medical condition that would cause you not 

to understand the terms of this guilty plea agreement or 

these proceedings today? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  No.    

  THE COURT:  Do you understand that you’re being 

charged with multiple transactions involving fraud or deceit 

in the course of an enterprise or occupation, that would be 

a category B felony?    

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  And how do you plead to that, guilty or 

not guilty? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty.    

  THE COURT:  Is anybody forcing you to plead guilty? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  No. 

  THE COURT:  Are you pleading guilty of your own 

free will? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  Do you understand as a consequence of 

pleading guilty this Court must sentence you to time in the 

Nevada Department of Corrections for a period of not less 
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than one year, not more than 20 years, fine you up to 

$10,000 and have you pay an administrative assessment fee?   

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  Do you understand that this is a 

probationable offense? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  Do you understand that sentencing will 

be strictly up to the Court so nobody can promise you 

probation, leniency, or special treatment? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  Okay, sir.  I do have the original 

guilty plea in front of me.  Did you read it? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  And did you understand it? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  Was your attorney present with you to 

answer any questions you had on this guilty plea agreement? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  Were you satisfied with his services? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.   

  THE COURT:  Did you sign this agreement? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  I’m going to show you page six.  Is 

this your signature?  

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    
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  THE COURT:  And did you sign this document freely 

and voluntarily? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  Do you understand that by pleading 

guilty you’re giving up the constitutional rights that are 

listed in this agreement? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  Do you understand if you’re not a U.S. 

citizen you could be deported based upon your guilty plea? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  Did you discuss your case and your 

rights with your attorney? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  And did you have any questions 

regarding those rights or this negotiation? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  No.  

  THE COURT:  Are you pleading guilty because on or 

between March the 1st of the year 2015 and March the 31st of 

the year 2016, in Clark County, Nevada, you and Jessica 

Garcia did, in the course of an enterprise or occupation, 

knowingly and with the intent to defraud, engage in an act, 

practice, or course of business, or employed a device, 

scheme, or artifice which operated or would have operated as 

a fraud or deceit upon a person by means of a false 

representation or omission of a material fact that, A, the 
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person knew to be false or omitted or, B, the person 

intended another to rely on and, C, resulted in a loss to 

any person who relied on the false representation or 

omission in at least two transactions that had the same or 

similar pattern, intents, results, accomplices, victims, or 

methods of commission, or were otherwise interrelated by 

distinguishing characteristics and were not isolated 

incidents within four years in which the aggregate loss or 

intended loss was more than $650, that being, on or between 

March the 1st of 2015 and March the 31st of 2016 that in and 

through the course of a real estate enterprise known as 

Parcelnomics, LLC, doing business as Investment Deals, you 

knowingly and with the intent to defraud obtained thousands 

of dollars from LoryLee Plancarte, Edelyn Rubin, Chatty 

Becker, Irene Segura, Liih-Ling Yang, Lina Palafox, Juan 

Eloy Ramirez, Catherine Wyngardner -- Wyngarden, I’m sorry, 

Catherine Wyngarden, Shahram Bozorgnia, Tat Lam, and Adilson 

Gibellato, by means of knowingly and falsely representing to 

said individuals that the titles to properties being sold to 

them by you were not encumbered by liens or other security 

interests, intending that said individuals rely on the 

misrepresentations and resulting in a loss of more than 

$650; is that true?        

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.    

  THE COURT:  All right.  This Court will accept your 
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plea as being freely and voluntarily entered today. 

  And, counsel, I do need you to approach and sign 

the certificate of counsel. 

  MR. WEINER:  Yeah, that’s what I was kind of 

leaning forward to see. 

  THE COURT:  Sir, I am going to refer you to Parole 

and Probation for what’s called a presentence investigation 

report.  You do have 48 hours from now to report for that 

interview, and then you’re ordered to come back for 

sentencing on the following date. 

  THE CLERK:  August 15th, 8:30, Department 17. 

  THE COURT:  And, for the record, I do have the 

conflict of interest waiver in front of me where Mr. Jack 

Leal is agreeing that Mr. Weiner can also represent the  

co-defendant, and that there’s not a conflict of interest.  

Correct, sir? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Correct. 

  THE COURT:  Yes.  Thank you.   

  He gave me the conflict of waiver without a cover 

page.  Can we just attach it to the GPA? 

  THE CLERK:  That’s what -- it should have been on 

both of them. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.   

  MR. WEINER:  And I’m sorry --  

  THE COURT:  Here -- 
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  MR. WEINER:  What was the --  

  THE COURT:  Here was his then.   

  MR. WEINER:  In terms of the sentencing date, your 

Honor, I’m going to ask for the longest date we can get as 

part of the plea requires the house to be sold. 

  THE COURT:  Yeah. 

  MR. WEINER:  And if it’s not sold there is a 

penalty to my clients in terms of the State having RTA. 

  THE COURT:  I would agree.   

  THE CLERK:  Okay.  So now instead of the 15th you 

want the 17th because that’s as far out as I can go. 

  MR. WEINER:  Okay.  And I’m sorry, what was that 

date, Madam Clerk? 

  THE CLERK:  So it’s going to be August 17th, 8:30, 

Department 17. 

  MR. WEINER:  Thank you.     

(Whereupon, the proceedings concluded.) 

* * * * * 

ATTEST:  I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly 
transcribed the audio/video proceedings in the above-
entitled case to the best of my ability. 

 
 

                             
    _________________________________________ 
    Kiara Schmidt, Court Recorder/Transcriber 
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DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
THE STATE OF NEVADA, 
 
                             Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
JACK LEAL, and JESSICA GARCIA 
 

        Defendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 
 
  CASE NO.:    C-17-322664-2 
                        C-17-322664-3 
 
                    
  DEPT.   XVII 
 
 

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 

 )   

 
BEFORE THE HONORABLE MICHAEL P. VILLANI, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 17, 2017 
 

SENTENCING (BOTH) 
 
 
APPEARANCES: 
 
  For the State:     MICHAEL C. KOVAC, ESQ. 
       Senior Deputy Attorney General 
       
  For the Defendant:    JASON G. WEINER, ESQ. 
 
  Victim Impact Speakers:   IRENE SEGURA 
       LUIS PALAFOX 
       LORYLEE PLANCARTE   
      
   
RECORDED BY:  CYNTHIA GEORGILAS, COURT RECORDER 
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CLERK OF THE COURT
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, AUGUST 17, 2017 

 [Proceedings commenced at 9:08 a.m.] 

 MR. WEINER: And, Your Honor, I have one more with the MR. GILL:  . 

 THE COURT:  Sure. 

 MR. WEINER: It’s Leal and Garcia, top of 8 -- well, Leal’s is top of 8, Garcia’s 

bottom. 

 THE COURT:  All right, Jack Leal. Time set for sentencing, and Jessica 

Garcia.  You have both of these; correct?  Both of -- 

 MR. WEINER: Correct, Your Honor. In the theme of the morning, can  

Mr. Kovac and I approach briefly? 

 THE COURT:  All right. 

[Bench conference not transcribed] 

 THE COURT:  Now, we do have two conflict of interest waivers signed by  

Mr. Leal and Ms. Garcia. I’m going to -- for some reason we can’t find them in the 

Court’s file. I’ll have my staff make copies of these and return the originals to 

Counsel.  

  So, we can go forward on Mr. Leal; is that correct? 

 MR. WEINER: Yes, Your Honor. 

 THE COURT:  All right, he is hereby adjudged guilty of multiple transactions 

involving fraud or deceit in the course of an enterprise and occupation.  

  Argument by the State. 

 MR. KOVAC: And, Your Honor, we have three victim speakers here today, at 

least three victim speakers -- 

 THE COURT:  All right. 

 MR. KOVAC: -- here today.   
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 THE COURT:  They’ll go last. 

 MR. KOVAC: Okay.   

  I’m going to be arguing that Mr. Leal obviously go to prison. He has two 

prior felonies so they are similar in nature; ones for forgery, ones for theft by 

deception and possession of a fraudulent ID.  P&P’s recommending 24 to 120 

months. I think that’s going to be a little light. I’m recommending 60 to 180 months. 

The amount that was stolen in this case was pretty substantial. We’re talking over 

three quarters of a million dollars. We have 11 named victims. Each of them lost at 

least five figures. You’ll hear the impact on each of these victims pretty soon.  

  And basically, Mr. Leal went and bought properties at a bankruptcy 

foreclosure auction. He bought the properties at a bankruptcy foreclosure auction 

and when he did that -- there’s basically two lists of properties. There’s one list that 

says you take these properties subject to the existing mortgages and you get them 

for pennies on the dollar, maybe two or three thousand dollars. You have another 

list that makes it clear that there are no mortgages on these properties and they’re 

more like the prices you would expect, you know, five, six figure properties.  And Mr. 

Leal bought a bunch of properties on the smaller list for pennies on the dollar and 

then represented to these victims, or had his employees represent to the victims, 

that they were free and clear of any kind of liens or mortgages. And as a result, 

these -- I mean basically ruined the retirements of most of these victims.   

  Based on the financial impact of this case, and really no remorse by the 

Defendant, -- he’s done little to nothing to make restitution in this case.  He said that 

he was going to sell a house in order to pay this off.  We had this arraignment back 

in April when I met with his attorney and the Defendant’s downstairs in lower level 

arraignment. I said you need to get this property back in your name. You need to 
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sign a lien in this state’s favor and get this sold.  First time anything happens is now 

a week before sentencing. They did absolutely nothing for 4 months. And the house 

is on the market. It’s valued about $580,000.00. That’s what the last recorder entry 

notes and they have it on the market for 1.2 million dollars. Now they dropped it to 

one million dollars. There’s no real efforts to make restitution in this case. 

 THE COURT:  All right, thank you. 

  Mr. Leal, do you have anything to say before I sentence you? 

 THE DEFENDANT: I do. There’s been a lot of issues going on between 

myself and Jessica who is not here. She was actually in charge of the property sale. 

I’ve since jumped in. I have recorded a lien in the state’s favor for over $600,000.00 

which is the balance due.  I accept responsibility for this but there’s a lot of 

underlying things that are not addressed at the moment, I should say. My goal was 

to get restitution to everybody. The property, as per the Assessor’s site today, is 

valued just over a million which is what it’s listed at. There’s an offer that should be 

in today. I’ve done all I could to remove myself from the house to get everybody 

restitution, put everybody else before myself at the moment. Jessica’s not here. She 

-- like I said, she was the one who was dealing with this. We have a no contacting 

order. She cannot contact me. I’ve had no contact with her for the past 60 days. I 

have a copy of that. That’s really where the delay in all of this came out.  It wasn’t us 

doing nothing. It was me assuming she was doing it but being unable to contact 

each other. 

 THE COURT:  Whose name is on the title? 

 THE DEFENDANT: Mine as of -- 

 MR. WEINER: [Indiscernible]. 

 THE DEFENDANT: -- last week. I transferred it because she had gotten 
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nothing done to this point. 

 THE COURT:  Well, how could you transfer it if it was her name? 

 THE DEFENDANT: It was in a trust. The trustee was able to sign it over to 

me. I recorded the deed on the 11th. The property’s in my name. As soon as that 

came out I flew out here. I recorded a lien. I have a copy of the lien in the State’s 

favor right now. The property is actively marketed. The restitution is the main 

concern in my eyes.  I assumed Jessica had been getting that done. I -- we’re not 

allowed to speak. She has an open domestic case and we have no contact. I 

assumed this was done by now.  As soon as I found it wasn’t, I flew out here. I’ve 

been trying to get this all done. The restitution -- I mean there should be no issue 

with it. I have a copy of the title policy I’ve got.  No liens; the property’s free and 

clear.  We take whatever amount just to settle the restitution figure at this point. 

 MR. KOVAC: And, Your Honor, Defense counsel -- I have to speak up.  

Defense counsel sent me the title assessment just yesterday and it shows a bunch 

of liens on this property. 

 THE DEFENDANT: There’s two Republic garbage -- Republic Waste 

[indiscernible] for $256.00 each. I have a copy of it right here from Fidelity Title. 

 THE COURT:  Anything else, sir? 

 THE DEFENDANT: To the victims, like I said, I mean I’ve been trying to do 

the restitution. I had no idea it wasn’t taken care of or paid. Apparently, the conflict 

waiver was a mistake. As far as the situation that happened, we were under the 

assumption that -- we didn’t explain it correctly, I guess, what we were selling. We 

did transfer title to them. We did sell them the properties. It wasn’t as if we just took 

their money and ran and -- 

 THE COURT:  Where’s the money, the $750,000.00?  Where is it? 
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 THE DEFENDANT: It’s tied up in this property which is what we’re trying to 

liquidate.  

 THE COURT:  You had 11 transactions. You used 11 transactions to buy the 

one property; correct? 

 THE DEFENDANT: Correct. We had money -- we didn’t -- 

 THE COURT:  So the property -- you spent $750,000.00 on a property that is 

either $500,000.00 or 1.1 million? 

 THE DEFENDANT: $585,000.00 is what we purchased it for at a foreclosure. 

The county assessed value as of today is just over a million.  When we were selling 

the properties, like I said, we initially bought the properties. We had money tied up in 

them.  We thought they were worth it.  It wasn’t as if we just took people’s money 

and ran. It was a huge -- I guess we didn’t explain exactly what they were getting it 

for -- their money.  At this point, as I stated to my attorney, I’d be willing to even sign 

the property over to the State for the remaining balance. There’s $600,000.00 owed. 

They already seized $157,000.00 I believe. I’d be willing to sign over the property for 

the 585 value and throw in the difference out of pocket to satisfy restitution at this 

point. I have no issue with that route.  

 THE COURT:  Is there a paper trail showing these funds directly going to the 

purchase of the property, do you know, Counsel? 

 MR. KOVAC: I don’t know. And that’s the State’s problem, we’re not going to 

take over this house given -- 

 THE COURT:  Right.  

 MR. KOVAC: -- all the lies that were from the other properties that are subject 

to this case. 

 THE DEFENDANT: It was -- it was actually out of the Bank of America 
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account. 

 THE COURT:  Well, we have these transactions going on for -- from 2015 

through 2016.  

 MR. WEINER: And, Your Honor, that is correct. They -- there were houses 

they did buy from the HOA where the mortgages were extinguished. I think there 

was some confusion on what was what. Some of them were initially charged in this 

case were dismissed out. They did figure this out on some of the houses involved 

here, and actually before the AG even got involved, paid a couple of people back 

their purchase price before even a criminal case was initiated by Nevada. So, it’s not 

that, as he stated, they’re not trying to run away. They’re trying to fix this. 

  The -- well, as an initial matter, Your Honor, just to address what we 

discussed at the bench, the ongoing conflict waivers -- the dispute between them 

began after the change of plea but before sentencing. If you want to put on the 

record, I contacted the bar ethics hotline. They recommended that I withdraw based 

on what’s going on here. I did. I will make that motion. I do understand that the 

Court’s going to insist that we go forward today and that’s certainly the Court’s right 

to do but -- 

 THE COURT:  Well, is the conflict the fact that your client thought that  

Ms. Garcia was going to pay this off?  Is that the conflict? 

 MR. WEINER: Well, no, it wasn’t they were paying it off. They were supposed 

to be working together. Then they had a no contact order so they couldn’t. So 

they’re now basically pointing at each other saying this is -- she’s saying this is his 

fault, he’s saying that’s her fault. That’s an antagonistic defense. I mean I should not 

be -- 

 THE COURT:  Well, it’s -- that relates -- it’s not a defense to the case -- 
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 MR. WEINER: Well -- 

 THE COURT:  -- because if it says why the -- 

 MR. WEINER: -- in terms of sentencing. 

 THE COURT:  -- restitution wasn’t paid and this is joint and several which 

means if one -- 

 MR. WEINER: Correct. 

 THE COURT:  -- doesn’t pay the other owes the full amount. That’s what -- 

 MR. WEINER:  Oh, and like I said, Your Honor, he’s correct. We have a print 

out from the Clark County Assessor’s website for the 2017 - 2018 year that values 

the property at $1,032,044.00. The lien has been filed with the State in favor of the 

Attorney General’s office. I’ve provided a copy of that to Mr. Kovac.  His name is 

even on it to be informed once it’s actually approved because the assessor kind of 

went cross eyed on my client when he went down there because liens are generally 

not filed against yourself. And so, they wanted to send it to their legal department 

and contact the AG’s office which apparently hasn’t happened yet, but we do have 

the paperwork showing that my client signed off on it. He is desperately trying to get 

this money out and he will do it any way, shape, or form he can to get it out of the 

residence. The fact that he started paying restitution before there was even a 

criminal case I think shows his intent to get these people paid back.  

 THE COURT:  Was an offer on the property that he has now made back in 

March 2015 because that’s when this whole house of cards started? 

 MR. WEINER: An offer -- he went and purchased this house -- when? 

 THE DEFENDANT: We bought this January ‘16. 

 MR. WEINER: They bought this January ‘16, the first -- 

 THE COURT:  Of --  
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 MR. WEINER: We have a letter which I provided to Mr. Kovac showing -- from 

the real estate agent showing that it has been actively marketed. There are, as I 

said, we now basically have a bid in 30 -- 

 THE COURT:  No, when they purchased the property; -- 

 MR. WEINER: Yes, Your Honor. 

 THE COURT:  -- okay?  Or when was the offer [indiscernible] originally 

purchase this property? I know there’s a bid to sell it? 

 MR. WEINER: Right.  

 THE COURT:  But when did they purchase it? 

 MR. WEINER: January of ‘16 is when -- 

 THE COURT:  2016. Well, if they purchased it January ’16, we have 

transactions of February 2016 and March 2016.  

 MR. WEINER:  No, I think that’s some of the funds that, as again, one 

hundred and fifty some odd thousands of dollars were already seized by the State 

out of a bank account.  

 THE COURT:  No, but the point is they were obtaining funds from people 

allegedly to purchase this home and you’re telling me they purchased it in January 

and they were still doing these bogus transactions in February of 2016. 

 MR. WEINER: Well, Your Honor, I don’t think at that point -- and like again, 

some of the -- they were doing a lot of transactions only a few of which are the 

subject of this case.  [Indiscernible] indicated the HOA cases the mortgages were 

extinguished. There were several home sales that involved those that there is no 

problem with that aren’t a subject to this case.  So, as I indicated, this is a company 

called Parcelnomics.  

 THE COURT:  Your client’s a real estate agent; right? 
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 MR. WEINER: I don’t think you’re -- 

 THE DEFENDANT: I’m not an agent. We just buy and sell.  We bought -- we 

buy all kind of foreclosures, HOA’s, bankruptcies.  

 THE COURT:  You never went through a title company?  You never met -- at 

the title company? It seems like you were meeting these people at the Clerk’s office 

and you wanted them to hand you a cashier’s check. 

 MR. WEINER: Some of it was by agents, ‘cause again, they’re kind of bi-

coastal. They are also in Florida. That is why Ms. Garcia is not here today. She’s 

there. She couldn’t get on a plane. But they were doing this without essentially the 

benefit of being licensed. They were just doing individual home sale flipping kind of 

deals and they got themselves in trouble ‘cause they didn’t understand what they 

were doing. 

 THE COURT:  How about the two prior fraud cases?  

 MR. WEINER: I do not believe those involved -- 

 THE COURT:  No, I want to know his past -- 

 MR. WEINER: -- real -- 

 THE COURT:  -- record, what are those about? 

 MR. WEINER:  I think those were how many years ago? 

[Colloquy between Counsel and Defendant] 

 MR. WEINER: Yeah, I think it was just a theft. That’s what I thought. 

[Colloquy between Counsel and Defendant] 

 THE COURT:  Well, one was forgery pled to a theft. One was theft by 

deception which sounds like what we have here and he pled to theft by deception 

and he got 20 -- 

 MR. WEINER: Right, that’s the one in 2007, Your Honor. They’re actually 
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from the same case. That’s why the dates are the same. 

 THE COURT:  It was a different -- I mean, -- 

 MR. WEINER:  The 9/17 of 2007, the Court looked at the two convictions. 

They’re both from the same -- 

 THE DEFENDANT: Incident. 

 MR. WEINER: -- incident. 

 THE COURT:  State, do you know anything about the facts of those cases? 

 MR. KOVAC: I don’t know the facts. I just see that there’s two separate cases 

listed, one with one felony, one with two felonies.  

 THE COURT:  Anything else, Counsel? 

 MR. WEINER: No, Your Honor. The only other thing I could say is I didn’t get 

a notice of speakers, but Court’s pleasure. 

 THE COURT:  All right, let’s hear from our speaker. 

 MR. KOVAC: Let’s see, the first one, Irene Segura. 

 THE MARSHAL:  Irene Segura. 

VICTIM IMPACT SPEAKER: IRENE SEGURA 

[having been called as a witness and first being duly sworn in testified as follows:] 

 THE CLERK:  Please state and spell your name for the Court’s record. 

 MS. SEGURA: My name is Irene Segura, that’s S as in Sam, -E-G-U-R-A. 

 THE COURT:  All right, ma’am, go ahead and tell me how this has impacted 

you. And can you give me a little bit of background on how this transaction took 

place. 

 MS. SEGURA: Okay, yes sir.  Thank you -- first of all thank you very much for 

giving me this opportunity to give a statement.  

  It wasn’t too long ago I was here at this criminal court building. I was 
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given the opportunity to make a statement during sentencing to three criminals who 

fatally shot my son in the back while running away from his attackers.  Twelve years 

later, today, I am given the same opportunity to speak again at the sentencing of 

criminals. You may not be a murderer in the true sense of the word, however, in my 

eyes and in the eyes of my family -- 

 THE COURT:  Ma’am, please address the Court so we don’t have any issues; 

okay? 

 MS. SEGURA: You are killers.  You have killed the dream of a young man 

[indiscernible] by the murder of my son, his father. When my son was killed he left 

behind his toddler son fatherless. It was at this time when I promised my deceased 

son at his grave site that I would help fund my -- his son’s college education when 

the time comes.  I knew I had enough time to save for this promise. So in addition to 

saving for our golden years, I have set aside some extra money for my grandson’s 

college education. My husband and I scrimped, saved and cut back on every 

possible expense we can think of.  We cut back on dining out, taking vacations, and 

hung on to our 20 year old car until it gave up on us.  We wanted to surprise our 

grandson with a check on his high school graduation. He graduated last June and 

there was no check to surprise him with because you guys have stolen his college 

fund by scamming us with two worthless properties. It was fraud, pure and simple.  

The last two years were both mentally and emotionally draining. My husband is 75 

and I am 64, both seniors whose means to a debt free and comfortable life in our 

remaining years you have killed by your brand of fraud. We are not in the business 

of buying and flipping properties. We were just looking at ways of adding extra 

money to our nest egg, to our modest nest egg which took more than half of our 

married life to save. Instead, we lost a nest egg, plus a few more. We had to 
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refinance the house we currently live in to pay for some of the most urgent medical 

bills not covered by Medicare like radiation and chemotherapy. In March of last year 

I was diagnosed with stage 2 uterine cancer.  In all probability the heartache and 

stress of falling victim to your kind of fraud contributed to the cancer that I now have.  

It is a no brainer to conclude that being stress free and peace of mind will help beat 

this cancer. The sleepless nights have also cost my hypertension to worsen. But 

now I ask you how can I be stress free to beat this disease when I am up to my 

eyeballs in debt?  While you guys were having the time of your life from proceeds of 

your fraud and scams, we, the victims, were left with a undeniable fact that we paid 

a high price for being trusting and naïve.  I hope and pray that Karma, the law of the 

universe, will get back at you sooner than later and that Karma starts today in this 

court. May this Honorable Court sentence you with the highest possible punishment 

for your crimes, doubly so because you have victimized seniors like us who have 

worked all our lives to enjoy out twilight years in peace and comfort.  

  Thank you, Your Honor. 

 THE COURT:  Ma’am, I have a question for you. When you learned that there 

was a problem with the property, funding the properties, did you contact either Mr. 

Leal or Ms. Jackson [sic] and what was their response? 

 MS. SEGURA:  No, but I left like hundreds of messages and nobody returned 

my call. They were no longer in that office. The phone number of the guy, I think one 

of their employees who I dealt with, never answered the phone and then until it was, 

you know, the -- its -- the service has been disconnected, so. 

 THE COURT:  All right, thank you. 

 MS. SEGURA:  I at least recoup some of our, you know, lost money. I have 

contacted -- I have engaged a lawyer. 
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 THE COURT:  All right, thank you, ma’am. 

  Do we have another speaker? 

 MS. SEGURA:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

 MR. KOVAC: I have Juan Ramirez. 

 THE MARSHAL:  Mr. Ramirez, Juan. 

 MR. KOVAC: Oh, it looks like he must have stepped out.  I have Luis Palafox 

for Lena Palafox. 

VICTIM IMPACT SPEAKER:  LUIS PALAFOX 

[having been called as a witness and first being duly sworn testified as follows:] 

 THE CLERK:   Please state and spell your name for the record. 

 THE WITNESS:  Okay, Luis Palafox, L-U-I-S, P-A-L-A-F-O-X. 

 THE COURT:  Go ahead, sir. 

 MR. PALAFOX: Okay, Your Honor, well, the house was bought cheap. My 

wife purchased two houses from Mr. Leal and Jessica.  And she’s been in the 

country for about 6 years so she saw these properties listed on Zillow and -- but her 

-- she’s -- she doesn’t have like any idea that it was -- these houses had liens on 

them and they’re -- they had foreclosure mortgages from the previous owners. So, 

what they told us when we met them, they told us that we can go through a process, 

a quiet title or something. And actually, the lawyer that we spoke to was the same 

lawyers that they were dealing with. So, when we met them they -- we let them 

know, okay, we went through your lawyer that you recommended us to clean the 

title -- the liens through this lawyer -- we went to the lawyer and it was the same 

lawyer they were using so the lawyer was kind of into the scam too.  And the lawyer 

said there’s no way you can do that. There’s no way you can do a quiet title and 

clean the titles. You’re gonna lose your properties. And I mean she -- it was a lot of 
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money so I mean she’s in college and I mean we heard of all the other victims that 

went through all this process too. I mean we were hearing about seniors like this 

lady that just passed by right now that lost all their 401K accounts and they just 

cleaned my wife like out. So, the only thing I want is justice because I mean it’s a lot 

of money. It’s not two, three thousand dollars you know.  She paid $60,000.00 for 

one property and she’s just had dreams you know to just have some properties and 

when their -- when her parents come from China she wanted to have a house for 

them. So, -- and that just went away. They’re -- right now we’re renting a property 

and we’re not really owners and -- but it’s just -- we want justice, justice and -- what 

their -- what they did is no good. What they did is -- they just can’t take people’s 

money. And I mean people that work hard for them, people that have no idea how 

the -- I mean how the process works and they just took everyone’s money. I mean 

it’s just -- hard working you know people that they hurt. And my wife, she was -- she 

wanted to come but she had a dentist appointment and -- doctor’s appointment, 

sorry, and -- but we want justice.  And she has a lawyer too that she’s working on 

the case. It’s just they can’t do that to innocent people that you know they -- it’s all 

their savings. They work hard every day. I mean honest work, honest people and 

they just scammed a lot of people. 

 THE COURT:  Sir, when this matter fell through, did you or your wife try to 

contact them -- 

 MR. PALAFOX:  Yeah, same -- 

 THE COURT:  -- and what happened? 

 MR. PALAFOX: -- thing. We were -- they left voice messages. One case I 

think she did answer but she said -- I don’t know, she spoke to my wife and she said 

something about if she’d sign the property back or something to her she would give 
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her the money but that never happened and -- I mean that was the last. We kept on 

calling and then the victims you know spoke to each other and told them what 

happened. I mean we were going to go like go up to the -- call the news or 

something so it can’t happen to other people because I mean Zillow’s a site you can 

trust.  I mean we didn’t know that now. Now we know we can’t trust it but you 

wouldn’t expect that from you know the website Zillow. That’s -- and it just said call 

this agent and we met with another guy  named Kevin and I went -- one 

circumstance we called him and he said, oh, yeah, I’m buying a Harley right now, 

you know, with the -- I’m pretty sure with the victims money. He’s buying a Harley. 

And so we’re like, okay, these guys are just you know spending money left and right 

and -- without having no remorse of the victims what they’re going through. I like -- 

she said, yeah, its, -- I mean hypertension. It’s stress. I mean we’re living check to 

check, so yeah, it’s not easy.  We just want justice. 

 THE COURT:  Sir, you had mentioned that you met with an attorney that 

represented him? 

 MR. PALAFOX:  No. 

 THE COURT:  No? 

 MR. PALAFOX:  She -- we got a lawyer. His name is Michael Lee. 

 THE COURT:  Oh, I thought you said that you went to a lawyer’s office, or 

was that the previous victim?  

 MR. PALAFOX:  Oh, ‘cause they said we -- to go to a process named quiet 

title. I’m pretty sure all the victims know this. They say, oh, yeah, go through quiet 

title and you can take off the trash liens and this and that. But we had no idea there 

was a mortgage in the property. We thought it was clear. You know I mean you don’t 

expect that. You don’t expect, okay, we’re buying a house in cash, its -- everything’s 
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okay with it. And my wife put in money. She put money in the properties. She put 

new tile. She put -- I mean appliances and she put -- I mean that was another 

$5,000.00 extra on what they scammed her with. 

 THE COURT:  All right, thank you, sir. 

 MR. PALAFOX: Thank you. 

 THE COURT:  Do we have Mr. Ramirez back? 

 MR. KOVAC: Yeah, did Juan Ramirez come back?  Is there a Lorylee 

Plancarte? 

 MS. PLANCARTE:  I’m here. 

 MR. KOVAC: Okay; one more. 

VICTIM IMPACT SPEAKER: LORYLEE PLANCARTE 

[having been called as a witness and first being duly sworn in testified as follows:] 

 THE CLERK:   Please state and spell your name for the Court’s record. 

 THE WITNESS:   Lorylee Plancarte, P-L-A-N-C-A-R-T-E. 

 THE COURT:  Go ahead, ma’am. 

 MS. PLANCARTE: Thank you for this opportunity. I just wanted to say that I 

purchased a property from the two that are here today, Jack Leal. I don’t even know 

exactly. I just knew their names after I dealt with two of their associates or who they 

had under the company Pacelnomics. I purchased -- I came down twice to Las 

Vegas to purchase. I was shown probably 11 different properties. The first time that I 

had come down to look, those properties had not been able to become available to 

me ‘cause I was told they were sold so I came down two weeks later. And because I 

didn’t want to miss out on the opportunity to buy a house, they had shown me one. It 

was a rehab. It didn’t have all the toilets. It didn’t have the sinks and everything on it. 

So, the price that I purchased it for I thought was decent ‘cause I thought it was a flip 
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house. I was told it was free and clear, once the work was done on it that it would be 

great. I brought my entire family down, my children and myself, and my husband. 

Once we had run out of our money to do the rehab, we went in to do a refinance on 

the property. That’s when we found out that the property had liens on it. We were 

given the notice on our door that we had to be out. We tried to contact them. We got 

nowhere with that.  We have met with three separate lawyers on three separate 

occasions and also two other occasions we met with other victims who had 

purchased properties from them. We were trying to put together a lawsuit with -- 

‘cause we needed 10 or more so we had 10 or more and they were also waiting at 

the lawyers office to get more people together to file the suit, the civil claim. I was 

probably one of the first ones. I was told to go speak to the AG’s office and file my 

name down and then I was told about all the other victims. There was different 

types. Mine was -- I was told that my property was free and clear from a bankruptcy 

sale. That’s how it was attained. I know there was other victims that were HOA 

sales.  I didn’t pursue -- it was another $15,000.00 to $20,000.00 for us to go 

through a criminal case -- or not the criminal but the civil case, to go through the 

money and they said it could take you know years for that to happen for us. And at 

this point right now we had to try and make a life for ourselves again and purchase a 

new home and get ourselves settled somewhere else.  We came down from Oregon 

today. We were also at one point told we could purchase a home from them in 

Florida which we didn’t want to. We were also told that they were gonna give us 

restitution. One of the woman that had purchased two homes from them, she was 

settled with them. They gave her half of her money. They had paid $70,000.00 for a 

property; they gave her $35,000.00. I still am in contact with several of the victims. 

We still talk and I’ve seen where everything goes. It’s you know stressful. It’s time 
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consuming. It’s frustrating. But the idea that it was you know -- we purchased our 

house in 2015 of August. We were not even in our house for a year. It’s been a year 

today -- another year, so it’s been two years that -- since we purchased our 

property. We still see no restitution.  We’ve heard nothing. We did receive a call -- 

our attorney called us and said, oh, right before the last court case they wanted to 

settle and give us restitution if we gave them the deed to the property and all these 

different things; nothing ever came of it. So, I mean I don’t think -- I feel like I’m one 

in many which in some weird sense gives me a sense of you know like I wasn’t the 

only fool that had this happen to them.  But, I mean I don’t want to see -- 

 THE COURT:  Ma’am, you’re not a fool. You’re a trusting person. 

Unfortunately, someone took advantage of you. 

 MS. PLANCARTE:  Yeah, but I -- 

 THE COURT:  Did you have any communications with them when you found 

out that everything’s fallen through? 

 MS. PLANCARTE: Nothing. Nothing. Even the office where I had met the 

person at, no one was there, no phone calls returned, no texts returned. Nothing.  It 

was like it was all gone. No contact was ever made again.  

 THE COURT:  Thank you, ma’am. 

 MS. PLANCARTE: Thank you. 

 MR. KOVAC: I think that’s everyone. Is there anyone I missed for this case, 

any of the victims?  I believe that’s all, Your Honor. 

 THE COURT:  Ramirez; did he ever return? 

 MR. KOVAC: I don’t know what happened to him.  

 THE COURT:  JR, can you check the hallway for Mr. Ramirez. 

[Pause in proceedings] 
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 THE MARSHAL:  No, Your Honor. 

 THE COURT:  All right, thank you. 

  We have 11 victims at least over a 12 month period of time and this is 

pure and simple a scam.  It’s almost worse than going into a fast food place or a 

convenience store, an armed robbery. This is more planned out than those types of 

crimes. This went over a whole year and you scammed these people. Is anyone 

here from P&P?  Anyone?  No?  Is there?  

 THE PROBATION OFFICER:  [Indiscernible], Your Honor. 

 THE COURT:  I know you’re not part of this but just you know I’ve often 

complained about the program that P&P has for sentencing and we have 11 victims, 

a quarter of a million dollars, over a year, and they recommend one year above 

minimums.  I don’t know what program you guys are using. It’s broken. 

 THE PROBATION OFFICER: I’ll let sentencing know. 

 THE COURT:  I’ve had people, Public Defender client’s where they steal a car 

for $3,500.00 and they recommend more than 2 years.   

 MR. WEINER: And, Your Honor, I -- 

 THE COURT:  The Court’s going to -- 

 MR. WEINER: -- would just -- 

 THE COURT:  I’m sorry. 

 MR. WEINER: -- point out based on something the speaker said that they 

were paying people back before the State got involved and that’s not the kind of 

people that scam and run, otherwise that’s what they would have done. They paid 

back over -- before the State filed its case over I think $140,000.00 or $150,000.00 

to people once they figured out that there was a problem. That’s not the actions of 

grifters or someone doing this as a straight out scam.  
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 MR. KOVAC: And some of those people they grabbed the title back, gave 

back a portion of the money, then resold the title to somebody else. So, basically, 

they were double dipping basically.  

 MR. WEINER: And, again, this -- a lot of this was done, as I said, through 

agents. They never spoke to these people directly. 

 MR. KOVAC: That’s not true. There’s some through agents, there’s plenty of 

those done directly.  

 THE COURT:  All right, anything further, Counsel? 

 MR. WEINER: No, I was just addressing -- 

 THE COURT:  Okay. 

 MR. WEINER: -- what the speakers had to say. 

 THE COURT:  I’m going to sentence the Defendant to confinement in the 

Nevada Department of Corrections for a maximum term of 180 months, a minimum 

term of 72 months. He’s ordered to pay a $25.00 administrative assessment fee; a 

$3.00 DNA administrative assessment fee; $150.00 DNA fee, submit to DNA testing. 

And he has zero days credit for time served.   

  Counsel, they’re identifying restitution of $757,420.00; are you disputing 

that amount or -- 

 MR. WEINER: No, the amount was never in dispute, Your Honor, but in less 

than 30 days these people would be paid back in full. What I would ask the Court to 

maybe consider is to kind of reserving that judgment, having us come back when 

the house sells. Everybody would made paid -- everybody would be paid in full at 

that point and that may certainly impact the Court’s sentencing on us. 

 THE COURT:  No, they had time. They had time to do this. They ripped these 

people off. They took advantage of them. They stabbed them in the back and I’m not 
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standing for it. 

 MR. WEINER: But basically it also puts in a position, Your Honor, how can we 

complete the sale. 

 THE COURT:  Well, they can -- either the State might be able to help them 

out or an attorney might be able to help them out and get this property sold.  

  And there’s a no bail bench warrant for Ms. Garcia. 

 MR. KOVAC: Thank you, Your Honor. 

 THE COURT:  And if she’s here within a week she may get the similar 

sentence. If she’s out and about and trying to avoid prosecution that’s going to tell 

me she’s not taking this serious and I’m going to max her out. I’m not mad -- 

 MR. WEINER: Understood, Your Honor. 

 THE COURT:  -- at you, Counsel. You did your job. You got 11 felonies down 

to 1 so I mean you should be commended because you did a good job for them but 

these people need to pay the price. 

 MR. KOVAC: Thank you, Your Honor. 

[Colloquy between Court and clerk] 

 MR. WEINER: Your Honor, the State already has one hundred and fifty-seven 

if the Court wants to direct how it’s to be dispersed. 

[Colloquy between Court and clerk] 

[Proceedings concluded at 9:49 a.m.] 

* * * * * 
ATTEST:    I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the 
audio/video recording in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability. 
 
 
        __________________________ 
       CYNTHIA GEORGILAS 
       Court Recorder/Transcriber/DC XVII 
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Nevada State of, Plaintiff(s)
VS.

$6,616.04,

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COLINTY, NEVADA

Case No.: A-16-7 44347 -C

Department 2

ORDER FOR DISMISSAL

It appears to the Court that more than 120 days have passed since the filing of the

Complaint in this action and service of the Summons and Complaint have not been made

on Defendant. Now, therefore, pursuant to NRCP 4(i), it is hereby

ORDERED that this action be, and it hereby is, dismissed.

DATED: 5th day of September,2)l7.

I hereby certify that on the date filed, I
mailed or placed a copy of this Order in
the Attorney's folder in the Clerk's
Office to:

Michael C. Kovac
Office of Attorney General
555 E. Washington Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89101

lsl Melody Howard

Melody Howard, Judicial Assistant

NOTE: EDCR 2.90: Case may be reinstated within
party or party's attorney.

RICHARD F. SCOTTI

30 days upon written request of a

Case Number: A-16-744347-C

Electronically Filed
9/7/2017 10:44 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Case Number: A-16-744347-C

Electronically Filed
9/28/2017 12:01 PM
Steven D. Grierson
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REGISTER OF ACTIONS

CASE NO. A-16-744347-C

Nevada State of, Plaintiff(s) vs. $6,616.04, Defendant(s) §
 §
 §
 §
 §
 §

Case Type: Other Civil Matters

Date Filed: 09/30/2016

Location: Department 2

Cross­Reference Case Number: A744347

PARTY INFORMATION

Lead Attorneys

 

 

 

 

 

Defendant $6,616.04

 

 

Plaintiff Nevada State of Michael C. Kovac

   Retained
 702­486­3420(W)

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

    DISPOSITIONS
09/07/2017

 
  

Order of Dismissal (Judicial Officer: Scotti, Richard F.) 
Debtors: 1024 Santa Helena Trust (Claimant), Jack Leal (Claimant), Jessica Garcia (Claimant), Parcelnomics LLC (Claimant)
Creditors: Nevada State of (Plaintiff)
Judgment: 09/07/2017, Docketed: 09/07/2017

    
    OTHER EVENTS AND HEARINGS
09/30/2016  Complaint

Complaint for Forfeiture

09/30/2016  Lis Pendens
Notice of Lis Pendens

01/02/2017  Case Reassigned to Department 18

Case reassigned from Judge Elizabeth Gonzalez Dept 11

06/05/2017  Administrative Reassignment ­ Judicial Officer Change

From Judge David Barker to Judge Mark B. Bailus

08/21/2017  Case Reassigned to Department 2

Civil Case Reassignment to Judge Richard F. Scotti

09/07/2017  Order of Dismissal

Order for Dismissal

09/28/2017  Ex Parte Motion
Plaintiff's Ex Parte Motion for Order Reopening Case and Staying Proceedings

10/10/2017  Order
Order Reopening Case and Staying Proceedings

02/21/2018  Status Check  (3:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Scotti, Richard F.)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

          
          
      Plaintiff Nevada State of
      Total Financial Assessment  11.50
      Total Payments and Credits  11.50
      Balance Due as of 01/22/2018  0.00
            
10/11/2016   Transaction Assessment      11.50
10/11/2016   Payment (Window)  Receipt # 2016­98798­CCCLK  Jessica Garcia  (11.50)
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REGISTER OF ACTIONS

CASE NO. C-17-322664-2

State of Nevada vs Jack Leal §
 §
 §
 §
 §
 §
 §
 §
 §
 §
 §
 §

Case Type: Felony/Gross Misdemeanor
Date Filed: 04/11/2017
Location: Department 17

Cross­Reference Case Number: C322664
Defendant's Scope ID #: X0157754
ITAG Booking Number: 0

ITAG Case ID: 0
Lower Court Case # Root: 16F19220

Lower Court Case Number: 16F19220B
Supreme Court No.: 74050

RELATED CASE INFORMATION

Related Cases
C­17­322664­3 (Multi­Defendant Case)

PARTY INFORMATION

Lead Attorneys
Defendant Leal, Jack Jason G. Weiner

   Retained
 702­202­0500(W)

 

Plaintiff State of Nevada Adam Paul Laxalt
 702­486­3420(W)

CHARGE INFORMATION

Charges: Leal, Jack Statute Level Date
1.  MULTIPLE TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING FRAUD OR DECEIT

IN THE COURSE OF AN ENTERPRISE AND OCCUPATION
205.377 Felony 03/01/2015

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

    DISPOSITIONS
04/24/2017

  
(Judicial Officer: Villani, Michael)

 1. MULTIPLE TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING FRAUD OR DECEIT IN THE COURSE OF AN ENTERPRISE AND OCCUPATION
Guilty

08/17/2017
  
(Judicial Officer: Villani, Michael)

 1. MULTIPLE TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING FRAUD OR DECEIT IN THE COURSE OF AN ENTERPRISE AND OCCUPATION
Guilty

08/17/2017

  

(Judicial Officer: Villani, Michael)
 1. MULTIPLE TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING FRAUD OR DECEIT IN THE COURSE OF AN ENTERPRISE AND OCCUPATION

Sentenced to Nevada Dept. of Corrections
Term: Minimum:72 Months, Maximum:180 Months
Credit for Time Served: 0 Day

Other Fees
Fee Totals:

Administrative
Assessment Fee $25 $25.00

DNA Analysis Fee $150 $150.00
Genetic Marker
Analysis AA Fee $3 $3.00

Fee Totals $ $178.00

    
    OTHER EVENTS AND HEARINGS
04/11/2017  Criminal Bindover Packet Las Vegas Justice Court
04/11/2017  Amended Criminal Bindover Packet Las Vegas Justice Court
04/18/2017  Information

Information
04/20/2017

  

Initial Arraignment  (10:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Henry, Jennifer)
Parties Present

Minutes
Result: Matter Continued

04/24/2017  Arraignment Continued  (1:00 PM) (Judicial Officer Henry, Jennifer)
Parties Present
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Minutes

04/24/2017 Reset by Court to 04/24/2017
Result: Plea Entered

04/24/2017  Guilty Plea Agreement
07/18/2017  PSI
08/11/2017  NoticeNotice of Intent ot Present Victim Impact Statements
08/17/2017

  

Sentencing  (8:30 AM) (Judicial Officer Villani, Michael)
Parties Present

Minutes
Result: Defendant Sentenced

08/23/2017  Judgment of Conviction
JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION (PLEA OF GUILTY)

09/05/2017  Criminal Order to Statistically Close Case
Criminal Order to Statistically Close Case

09/08/2017  OrderOrder Allowing Notary Public
09/14/2017  Notice of Appeal (criminal)

Notice of Appeal
09/14/2017  Certificate of MailingCERTIFICATE OF MAILING
10/03/2017  Case Appeal Statement

Case Appeal Statement
10/11/2017  Reporters TranscriptRequest for Transcript of Proceeedings
11/17/2017  Recorders Transcript of HearingTranscript of Proceedings Sentencing (Both) Heard on August 17, 2017
11/20/2017  Recorders Transcript of HearingRecorders Transcript of Hearing Re: Initial Arraignment
11/20/2017  Recorders Transcript of HearingRecorders Transcript of Hearing Re: Arraignment Continued

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

          
          
      Defendant Leal, Jack
      Total Financial Assessment  178.00
      Total Payments and Credits  0.00
      Balance Due as of 01/22/2018  178.00
            
09/22/2017   Transaction Assessment      178.00
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REGISTER OF ACTIONS

CASE NO. 16F19220B

State of Nevada vs. LEAL, JACK §
 §
 §
 §
 §

Case Type: Felony

Date Filed: 11/29/2016

Location: JC Department 7

RELATED CASE INFORMATION

Related Cases

16F19220A (Multi­Defendant Case)
16F19220C (Multi­Defendant Case)

PARTY INFORMATION

Lead Attorneys

Defendant LEAL, JACK Jason G. Weiner

   Retained
 702­202­0500(W)

 

State of

Nevada

State of Nevada

CHARGE INFORMATION

Charges: LEAL, JACK Statute Level Date

1.  Racketeering [53190] 207.400 Felony 03/01/2015
2.  Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 06/01/2015
3.  Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 09/20/2015
4.  Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 08/01/2015
5.  Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 08/01/2015
6.  Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 03/01/2015
7.  Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 08/01/2015
8.  Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 09/21/2015
9.  Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 03/05/2015
10.
 

Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 04/13/2016

11.
 

Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 09/28/2015

12.
 

Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 03/09/2015

13.
 

Theft, $3500+ [55991] 205.0835.4 Felony 04/16/2015

14.
 

Fraud/deceit in course of enterprise/occup [55110] 205.377 Felony 03/01/2015

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

    DISPOSITIONS
04/11/2017  (Judicial Officer: Bennett­Haron, Karen P.)

 1. Racketeering [53190]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

2. Theft, $3500+ [55991]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

3. Theft, $3500+ [55991]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

4. Theft, $3500+ [55991]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

5. Theft, $3500+ [55991]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

6. Theft, $3500+ [55991]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

7. Theft, $3500+ [55991]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

8. Theft, $3500+ [55991]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

9. Theft, $3500+ [55991]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

10. Theft, $3500+ [55991]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

11. Theft, $3500+ [55991]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

12. Theft, $3500+ [55991]
Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court 152 of 153
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13. Theft, $3500+ [55991]

Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court
14. Fraud/deceit in course of enterprise/occup [55110]

Waiver of Preliminary Hearing ­ Bound Over to District Court

    
    OTHER EVENTS AND HEARINGS
11/28/2016  Multi­Defendant Case
11/28/2016  CTRACK Track Assignment JC07

11/29/2016  Criminal Complaint

11/29/2016  Summons Issued

11/29/2016  Request for Summons

12/14/2016  Summons Returned

Not deliverable as addressed; Unable to forward.
12/19/2016  Notice of Confirmation of Counsel

12/27/2016
  
Initial Appearance  (7:30 AM) (Judicial Officers Pro Tempore, Judge, Hua, Jeannie)
No bail posted

Result: Matter Heard
12/27/2016  Counsel Confirms as Attorney of Record

J. Weiner, Esq
12/27/2016  Amended Criminal Complaint

Filed in open court
12/27/2016  Initial Appearance Completed

Defense Advised of Charges on Criminal Complaint, Waives Reading of Criminal Complaint
12/27/2016  Motion to Continue ­ Defensefor negotiations ­ Motion granted
12/27/2016  Minute Order ­ Department 07

02/07/2017
  
Negotiations  (8:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Bennett­Haron, Karen P.)
No bail posted

Result: Matter Heard
02/07/2017  Motion to Continue ­ Defensefor negotiations ­ Motion granted
02/07/2017  Continued For Negotiations
02/07/2017  Minute Order ­ Department 07

03/07/2017
  
Negotiations  (8:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Bennett­Haron, Karen P.)
No bail posted

Result: Matter Heard
03/07/2017  Continued by Stipulation of Counsel
03/07/2017  Stipulationfiled in open court
03/07/2017  Continued For Negotiations
03/07/2017  NotifyAttorney General/clm via email
03/07/2017  Minute Order ­ Department 07

04/04/2017
  
Negotiations  (8:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Bennett­Haron, Karen P.)
No bail posted

Result: Matter Heard
04/04/2017  Motion to Continue ­ Defenseto file a corrected Waiver ­ motion granted
04/04/2017  Minute Order ­ Department 07

04/11/2017
  
Status Check  (8:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Bennett­Haron, Karen P.)
No bail posted

Result: Bound Over
04/11/2017  Waiver

of Unconditional Bindover filed in open court
04/11/2017

  
Unconditional Bind Over to District Court

Defendant unconditionally waives right to Preliminary Hearing. Defendant Bound Over to District Court as Charged. Defendant to Appear in the
Lower Level Arraignment Courtroom A.

04/11/2017  Case Closed ­ Bound Over
04/11/2017  District Court Appearance Date SetApr 20 2017 10:00AM: No bail posted
04/11/2017  Minute Order ­ Department 07

04/11/2017  Certificate, Bindover and Order to Appear
04/11/2017  Amended Certificate, Bind Over and Order to Appear
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TRAN 

 

 

 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 

THE STATE OF NEVADA, 
 
                   Plaintiff,                                                            
vs. 

 
JACK LEAL, 
  
 
                   Defendant. 
 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

   CASE NO. C-17-322664-2 
 
   DEPT. XVII  
  
(ARRAIGNMENT HELD IN DEPT. LLA) 

 
  
     
 
 
 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JENNIFER L. HENRY, HEARING MASTER 

THURSDAY, APRIL 20, 2017 
 

RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING RE: 
INITIAL ARRAIGNMENT    

 

APPEARANCES:  
 
  For the State:   MICHAEL KOVAC, ESQ., 
      Senior Deputy Attorney General 
            
  For the Defendant:  JASON WEINER, ESQ., 
      Attorney at Law 

RECORDED BY:  KIARA SCHMIDT, COURT RECORDER 
 

Case Number: C-17-322664-2

Electronically Filed
11/20/2017 1:31 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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THURSDAY, APRIL 20, 2017 

* * * * * 

P R O C E E D I N G S 

 

  THE CLERK:  Page 14, Jack Leal, C322664-2. Page 15, 

Jessica Garcia, C322664-3. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  And can I get the --  

  MR. KOVAC:  Good morning.  Michael Kovac for the 

Attorney General’s office.  

  THE COURT:  Thank you.   

  MR. WEINER:  And we’re just going to ask to 

continue this to Monday either -- probably the afternoon 

calendar would probably be simpler. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  And are you representing both 

co-defendants? 

  MR. WEINER:  Yes, your Honor.  Conflict waivers 

were filed in Justice Court at the waiver --  

  THE COURT:  Okay.  So you did waive conflicts and 

he’s okay representing both of you? 

  THE DEFENDANT:  Yes. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  And, counsel, any objection to a 

Monday continuance? 

  MR. KOVAC:  No, that’s fine, your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  You said you wanted a one o’clock 

setting? 
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  MR. WEINER:  Yeah, probably just to make sure I’m 

not caught up in District Court upstairs. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  One o’clock setting is fine.  

  THE CLERK:  That’ll be --  

  THE COURT:  I’m sorry.  And are you okay coming 

back at one o’clock? 

  MR. KOVAC:  Yeah, that’s fine. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  THE CLERK:  April 24th, one o’clock. 

  MR. WEINER:  Thank you, your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Thank you.       

(Whereupon, the proceedings concluded.) 

* * * * * 

ATTEST:  I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly 
transcribed the audio/video proceedings in the above-
entitled case to the best of my ability. 

 
 

                             
    _________________________________________ 
    Kiara Schmidt, Court Recorder/Transcriber 
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_________________ 
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 Appellant,    |       
      |    
vs.      | 
      |  APPELLANT’S APPENDIX 
      | VOL. I of I  
STATE OF NEVADA,   | 
      |  
 Respondent.    | 
______________________________ |   
 
       ADAM P. LAXALT, ESQ. 
       NEVADA ATTORNEY GENERAL 
       Nevada Bar #12426 
       100 North Carson St. 
       Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717 
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Las Vegas, NV89101    STEVEN S. OWENS, ESQ. 

    Nevada Bar #4352 
/s/ Lester M. Paredes III,Esq.   Chief Deputy District Attorney 
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       Counsel for Respondent 
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